CITY OF ROCHESTER HILLS BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

BROWNFIELD PLAN FORMER CARDINAL/VETERAN'S LANDFILL SITE

Approved by the City of Rochester Hills Brownfield Redevelopment Authority on March 4, 2004

Approved by the City of Rochester Hills City Council on May 19, 2004

Prepared by:

Jill Ferrari, Esq.
Applied Science & Technology, Inc. (ASTI)
10448 Citation Drive
Brighton, Michigan 48116
(810) 225-2800
Fax: (810) 225-3800

Email: jferrari@asti-env.com

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	. 2
Site Description	. 2
Summary of Existing Contamination	. 2
Eligibility	. 3
Plan Aspects	. 3
Description of costs to be paid for with tax increment revenues and summary of eligible activities	3
2. Estimate of captured taxable value and tax increment revenues	. 4
3. Method of financing and description of advances by the municipality	. 4
4. Maximum amount of note or bonded indebtedness	. 4
5. Duration of brownfield plan	. 5
3. Estimated impact of tax increment financing on revenues of taxing jurisdictions	5
7. Legal description, property map and personal property	. 5
3. Estimates of residents and displacement of families	. 5
9. Plan for relocation of displaced persons	. 5
10. Provision for relocation costs	6
11. Strategy for compliance with Michigan's Relocation Assistance Law	6
12. Description of proposed use of Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund	6
13. Other material that the authority or governing body considers pertinent	6
IST OF EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULE	7

FORMER CARDINAL LANDFILL SITE

INTRODUCTION

The City of Rochester Hills Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and City of Rochester Hills City Council have considered and adopted this Brownfield Plan to encourage the redevelopment of the former landfill site located on the southeast corner of Hamlin Road and Adams Road in Rochester Hills. The plan describes the site conditions and redevelopment plan which are to be implemented by the proposed new owner and user of the property pursuant to the Michigan Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, Public Act 381 of 1996, as amended.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The Proposed Madison Park Project is comprised of the former Cardinal Landfill and Veteran's Landfill parcels and adjoining properties located at the southeast corner of Hamlin Road and Adams Road in Rochester Hills, Oakland County, Michigan, identified as tax parcels 15-29-151-008, 15-29-151-011, 15-29-151-012, 15-29-151-015, 15-29-151-017, 15-29-176-004, 15-29-176-006, and 15-29-176-008. A legal description of each parcel is attached as Exhibit A to this Plan. The project consists of the preparation of a baseline environmental assessment, additional response activities and due care. The proposed redevelopment of the Property will include approximately 500,000 square feet of commercial retail space and approximately 1.5 million square feet of commercial office space. The property currently has flexible zoning designations as more fully set forth in that certain Amended Consent Order and Judgment dated February 12, 2004, entered in the action entitled *REI Brownstown LLC v. City of Rochester Hills, et al., Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 81-226225-CZ, Hon. Richard D. Kuhn.* A site location map of the property is included as Exhibit B.

SUMMARY OF EXISTING CONTAMINATION

The subject property was licensed as a sanitary landfill from at least 1968 to 1978. The Property was licensed to accept general refuse and industrial waste. There is no evidence that the site was ever properly closed, however, it is evident that the site stopped accepting waste and a limited cover was constructed in 1978. The Property was purchased in 1984 by the current owner, and has been used as an outdoor recreation facility since that time, housing eight softball diamonds and a clubhouse. Correspondence exists between the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and the current owner of the Property indicating that several environmental conditions exist at the Property, including methane and leachate outbreaks. The redevelopment of the site will ensure proper management of the environmental concerns that have been unmanaged for years.

ELIGIBILITY

Previous environmental investigations indicate that contaminants exist at the main parcel (15-29-151-012) in excess of DEQ Generic Residential Cleanup Criteria contained in the applicable rules promulgated pursuant to Part 201 of the Michigan Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act of 1994, as amended. Therefore, that parcel is a "facility" within the meaning of Part 201 and an "eligible property" pursuant to Act 381. All other parcels are either adjacent or adjoining parcels and their development as anticipated will increase the captured taxable value of the main parcel, and are therefore also "eligible property."

PLAN ASPECTS

1. <u>Description of Costs to Be Paid for With Tax Increment Revenues and Summary of Eligible Activities</u> (MCL 125.2663(1)(a)&(b))

Tax increment revenues will be used to reimburse the Developer and the Authority for the cost of eligible activities permitted under Act 381. No costs shall be reimbursed through school tax capture unless they are for activities implemented pursuant to a DEQ approved Work Plan.

As of the date of the adoption of the brownfield plan and based upon information known at this time by the Developer, it is expected that future eligible activities will consist of the following, provided that the Authority is authorized to approve any eligible activity without amendment of this plan. The following costs are estimated to amount to 30 Million Dollars:

- A. <u>Site Assessment</u> The proposed project activities include conducting a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, Phase II Environmental Site Assessments, Subsurface Investigations, geo-technical surveys, Category "N" Baseline Environmental Assessments (BEAs) and Preliminary Waste Characterization;
- B. <u>Additional Response Activities</u> Additional Response and Due Care activities will involve the removal of solid and hazardous wastes (if encountered), installation and operation of leachate controls, backfilling, design and engineering of the new landfill cap, installation of the new cap, methane management, onsite monitoring and maintenance, and other additional response activities;
- C. <u>Due Care</u> Due Care at the site will involve some of the aforementioned activities, as well as long term methane and groundwater monitoring; site inspections, or any other activities identified in future 381 Work Plans approved by the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality.
- D. <u>Contingency</u>. A 20% contingency factor has been provided due to the likelihood of encountering unexpected conditions during the renovation of an aged facility.

All of the costs identified in this section will be eligible for reimbursement only if incurred after approval of this Plan, with the exception of those costs incurred by the City of Rochester Hills prior to the adoption of the Brownfield Plan in accordance with Section 16 of the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, which states that "A Brownfield Authority may reimburse reasonable and actual administrative and operating expenses that include...baseline environmental assessments, due care activities, and additional response activities, related directly to work conducted by the Authority on prospective eligible properties prior to approval of the Brownfield Plan...only from capture local taxes not to exceed \$75,000 for each authority in each fiscal year." Therefore, the eligible activities listed under Site Assessment, Additional Response Activities and Due Care may be conducted prior to the approval of the Brownfield Plan and reimbursed through local taxes.

The estimated cost of the activities described in paragraphs A through D, is estimated at 30 Million dollars plus interest. The costs of all eligible activities will be advanced by the developer or through a separate funding source, arranged by the Developer and be reimbursed from tax increment revenues available under this Plan, as received by the Authority.

2. Estimate of Captured Taxable Value and Tax Increment Revenues (MCL 125.2663(1)(c)).

See attached combined Schedule 1. It is the intention of the Authority to collect only so much tax increment revenues as necessary to reimburse the eligible activities incurred by the Developer pursuant to this Plan, plus interest and the amounts to be deposited into the Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund as described in Paragraph 12 below.

3. Method of Financing and Description of Reimbursements by the Municipality (MCL 125.2663(1)(d)).

The Authority, the City and the Developer intend to enter into a Reimbursement Agreement that will establish their respective obligations to reimburse costs of the response activities and interest implemented on the eligible property. The reimbursement of any interest will be at a rate negotiated through the reimbursement agreement. Reimbursement to the Developer for eligible activities plus accrued interest will be from tax increment revenues generated from the eligible property identified in Exhibit A as such tax increment revenues are collected and received by the Authority. During the time period for reimbursement of eligible activities, the City may collect tax revenue generated from local taxes to be deposited into the Site Remediation Revolving Fund, and for an additional five years after all eligible activities are reimbursed, pursuant to Section 13(5) of Act 381, as stated in the Reimbursement Agreement. The amount of taxes levied for school operating purposes that will be used to reimburse the costs of implementing eligible activities at this site will be limited to the cost of eligible activities approved by the MDEQ.

4. Maximum Amount of Note or Bonded Indebtedness (MCL 125.2663(1)(e)).

Neither the Authority nor the City expects to issue any notes or bonds related to the Project. A portion of the tax increment revenues generated from the Project are expected to be used to reimburse the Developer for costs it incurs for eligible activities plus interest as will be provided in the reimbursement agreement.

5. <u>Duration of Brownfield Plan</u> (MCL 125.2663(1)(f)).

The Plan will remain in effect for as many years as required to fully reimburse all eligible activities, interest as provided in the Reimbursement Agreement, and deposits to the revolving fund, or for 30 years, whichever is less. It is the intention of the Authority to collect only so much tax increment revenues as are required to pay all obligations of the Authority incurred and approved pursuant to this Plan and the revolving fund deposits as stated in the Reimbursement Agreement.

6. <u>Estimated Impact of Tax Increment Financing on Revenues of Taxing Jurisdictions</u> (MCL 125.2663(1)(g)).

See attached combined Schedule 1. It is the intention of the Authority to collect only so much tax increment revenues as are required to reimburse the eligible activities costs incurred by Developer and interest thereon pursuant to this Plan and the Reimbursement Agreement, and the amounts to be deposited into the Site Remediation Revolving Fund as described in Paragraph 12 below and the Reimbursement Agreement, as well as administrative costs as allowed under Act 381. In the event that eligible activities and interest exceed 30 Million Dollars, this Brownfield Plan may be amended by the Rochester Hills City Council in accordance with Act 381.

7. <u>Legal Description, Property Map, Statement of Characteristics That Qualify the Property as Eligible Property and Statement as to Personal Property</u> (MCL 125.2663(1)(h)).

Attached as Exhibits A and B to this Plan. Personal property of the Developer shall be included as part of the eligible property.

8. Estimates of Residents and Displacement of Families (MCL 125.2663(1)(i)).

There are no persons residing on the eligible property to which this Plan applies, and therefore there are no families to be displaced.

9. Plan for Relocation of Displaced Persons (MCL 125.2663(1)(j)).

There are no persons residing on the eligible property to which this Plan applies, and therefore there is no need for a relocation plan.

10. Provisions for Relocation Costs (MCL 125.2663(1)(k)).

There are no persons residing on the eligible property to which this Plan applies, and therefore there is no need for the provision of relocation costs.

11. Strategy for Compliance with Michigan's Relocation Assistance Law (MCL 125.2663(1)(I)).

There are no persons residing on the eligible property to which this Plan applies, and therefore there is no need for compliance with Act No. 227 of the Public Acts of 1972, being Sections 213.321 to 213.332 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

12. <u>Description of Proposed Use of Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund</u> (MCL 125.2663(1)(m).

The Authority intends to capture the maximum amount permitted by Act 381 for deposit into a Site Remediation Revolving Fund to be utilized as approved by the Authority in accordance with Act 381. No funds from the Site Remediation Revolving Fund will be applied to this project without approval by the BRA.

13. Other Material that the Authority or Governing Body Considers Pertinent.

This project involves the redevelopment of a landfill that has been mismanaged for over twenty years. The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality indicates that the site is currently noncompliant with Due Care requirements set forth in Part 201 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (NREPA). This project will alleviate a known eyesore, and potential threat to public health and the environment. Documentation exists that indicates that leachate outbreaks have occurred in the nearby Gabler Drain and that methane outbreaks have occurred at the facility. The new development will include re-engineering the cap on the landfill to prevent methane and leachate outbreaks. The project will provide an enormous economic and environmental benefit to the community.

The project proposes to create thousands of new jobs, and will significantly increase the local tax base. Economic development in surrounding areas will be spurred by this development, and it will provide environmental controls that will ensure public health and safety.

LIST OF EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT A Legal Description

EXHIBIT B Site Location Map

SCHEDULE 1 Tax Capture Table

Exhibit A

Legal Descriptions

15-29-151-008

T3N, R11E, SEC 29 PART OF W ½ OF NW ¼ BEG AT PT DIST S 01-57-30 W 999.28 FT & N 78-57-00 E 317.29 FT FROM NW SEC COR, TH N 78-57-00 E 208.71 FT, TH S 00-20-00 W 212.41 FT, TH S 78-57-00 W 208.71 FT, TH N 00-20-00 E 212.41 FT TO BEG, EXC BEG AT PT DIST S 00-03-36 E 999.28 FT & N 76-56-09 E 317.29 FT FROM NW SEC COR, TH N 76-56-09 E 208.71 FT, TH S 00-37-44 W 33.68 FT, TH ALG CURVE TO LEFT, RAD 11384 FT, CHORD BEARS S 74-35-24 W 162.63 FT, DIST OF 162.63 FT TH S 74-10-51 W 48.46 FT, TH N 00-37-44 E 42.93 FT TO BEG 0.82 A9-27-95 CORR

15-29-151-011

T3N, R11E, SEC 29 PART OF E $\frac{1}{2}$ OF NW $\frac{1}{4}$ BEG AT PT ON N & S $\frac{1}{4}$ LI DIST N 610 FT FROM INTER OF SD N & S $\frac{1}{4}$ LI & NLY LI OF GTW RR RW, TH N 417 FT, TH N 86-11-00 W 343.45 FT, TH S 417 FT, TH S 86-11-00 E 343.45 FT TO BEG EXC BEG AT PT ON N & S $\frac{1}{4}$ LI DIST N 04-53-11 E 610 FT & 04-53-11 E 417 FT & N 81-17-34 W 142.60 FT FROM INTER OF N & S $\frac{1}{4}$ LI & NLY LI IF GTW RR RW, TH N 81-17-34 W 200.85 FT, TH S 04-53-11 W 51.09 FT, TH N 84-13-54 E 203.92 FT TO BEG 3.17 A8-2-02 CORR

15-29-151-012

T3N, R11E, SEC 29 PART OF NW $\frac{1}{4}$ BEG AT PT ALG N & S $\frac{1}{4}$ LINE DIST S 547.31 FT FROM N $\frac{1}{4}$ COR, TH WLY ALG CEN LINE OF HWY TO W 1/8 LINE, TH S 05-10-20 E 1572.43 FT TO NLY LINE OF GTWRR R/W, TH NELY ALG SD NLY R/W LINE TO N & S $\frac{1}{4}$ LINE, TH N ALG SD N & S $\frac{1}{4}$ LINE & NLY LINE OF TWRR R/W, TH N 417 FT TO CEN LINE OF HAMLIN RD, TH N 86-11-00 343.45 FT, TH S 417 FT, TH S 86-11-00 E 343.45 FT TO BEG, ALSO THAT PART OF FOL DESC PARCEL WHICH LIES N OF RELOCATED M-59 HWY DESC AS BEG AT PT DIST S 01-57-30 W 999.28 FT & N 78-57-00 E 526 FT FROM NW SEC COR, TH S 02-20-20 W 1737.10 FT TH N 69-22-40 E ALG RR R/W 1079.60 FT, TH N 05-10-20 E 1572.43 FT, TH S 78-57-00 W 1101.60 FT TO BRG X8.82 A4/9/85 FR 006 & 010

15-29-151-015

T3N R11E, SEC 29 PART OF NW $\frac{1}{4}$ BEG AT PT DIST S 00-10-00 E 998.59 FT & N 76-50-00 E 205.26 FT FROM NW SEC COR, TH N 76-50-00 E 112.02 FT, TH S 00-13-20 W 260 FT, TH S 76-50-00 W 90.72 FT, TH N 00-10-00 W 95 FT, TH S 89-50-00 W 18.99 FT, TH N 00-10-00 W 160.20 FT TO BEG 0.60 A12-6-91 FR 013 8-24-94 CORR

15-29-151-017

T3N, R11E, SEC 29 PART OF W $\frac{1}{2}$ OF NW $\frac{1}{2}$ BEG AT PT ON N LINE OF M-59 HWY RELOCATION DIST S 01-57-30 W 999.28 FT & N 78-57-00 E 205.26 FT & S 00-10-00 E 1082.70 FT FROM NW SEC COR, TH N 00-10-00 W 023.11 FT, TH N 78-57-00 E 110.21 FT, TH N 00-20-00 W 47.59 FT, TH N 78-57-00 E 208.71 FT, TH S 00-20-00 W TO NLY LI OFRELOCATED M-59 HWY, TH NWLY ALG NLY LINE OF M-59 HWY RELOCATION TO BEG, EXC THAT PART LYING SLY OF LINE DESC AS BEG AT PT DIST S 02-40-23 E 1775.59 FT & N 87-19-37 E 100 FT FROM NW SEC COR, TH S 43-12-41 E 243.36 FT, TH S 68-32-20 E 270 FT TO PT OF ENDING 5.25 A7-22-94 FR 009

15-29-176-004

T3N, R11E, SEC 29 PART OF NW $\frac{1}{4}$ BEG AT PT ON NLY LINE OF M-59 HWY DIST N 03-25-16 E 316.26 FT & S 84-23-51 W 607.52 FT FROM CEN OF SEC, TH S 84-23-54 W 292.09 FT TH ALG CURVE TO RIGHT, RAD 2094.83 FT, CHORD BEARS N 83-16-16 W 894.71 FT, DIST OF 901.66 FT TO SLY LINE OF GTW RR, TH N 65-25-07 E 287.75 FT, TH S 24-34-53 E 20.00 FT, TH N 65-25-07 E 1040.00 FT, TH S 03-25-16 W 611.55 FT TO BEG 9.43 A06/09/87 FR 002 & 003

15-29-176-006

T3N, R11E, SEC29E 600 FT OF NW ¼ LYING SLY OF S LINE OF GTW RR EXC THAT PART LYING SLY OF LINE DESC AS BEG AT PT DIST N 03-25-16 E 367.20 FT FROM CEN OF SEC, TH S 84-23-54 W 707.41 FT, TH N 05 36-06 W 50 FT, TH S 84-23-54 W 203.40 FT, TH ALG CURVE TO RIGHT, RAD 2291.83 FT, CHORD BEARS N 83-56-22 W 926.55 FT, DIST OF 932.98 FT, TH N 72-16-38 W 500 FT TO PT OF ENDING 9.26 A4-28-99 FR 005

15-29-176-008

T3N, R11E, SEC 29 THAT PART OF ABANDONED GTW RR R/W LYING IN N W 1 4 OF SEC 29 6.84A 2-7-01 FR ABANDONED RR R/W

Exhibit B Site Location Map

Schedule 1

Tax Capture Table

Madison Park of Rochester Hills Preliminary Estimate of Brownfield Tax Capture

Year		.2 11 1		2014	MI			7914	. 7911	Mr.	3 40	2014	PR	2915	MIT.	Jen .	7th	NA N	7944	nn	mtt	. PH		, N. H.	797	3 27	tala .	704	An.,	.apr	u	
		1 800 000	1 105 000	1 200 200	1 000 000	1 800 800	1 800 000	1 800 000	1 see ont	1 100 200	1 900 000	1 200 000	1,819,000	1,808,000	1 800 202	1,800,000	1,800,809	1,000,000	1,900,000	1,900,000	1,900,000	1 #00,000	1,600,000	1,000,000	1,900,900	1,800,000	1,800,000	1,800,000	1,846,000	1,960,000	1,900,900	1,900,000
Current Taxable Value		1,900.000	1,800,000	1301300	1,000,000	1,200,000	1,500,000	1,500,000	1,100,000	,,,,,,,,,,,	.,	1,201.010	,,,	.,																		
																137.079.471	141.161.853	145.427.818	149,790,439	154 284 152	150.212.273	143.889.057	100 500 450	173.848.172	179.857.817	1M-222-348	100 750 540	195.447.548	201 105 824	207,344,999	212,565,349	WA ST 170
Taxable Value After Ingreveneers		1,900,000	17,500,500	34,300,000	60,000,000	103,000,000	105,060,000	109.211,900	111.459,154	114,901,999	118,245,998	121,793,334	123.447,134	129,211,549	133,899,965	137,979,A71	141,181,951	145.427,812	149,780,439	194,284,192	100,012,015	161,584,057	101,300,431	113.844,172	170,007,017	194,223,344	100,700,044	INC. AND. SHE	TAI DAYNG	201,244,886	212,303,344	110,012,000
- passumes project is completed in 200 Yestal Contured Taxable	(4)		16 202 020	22 490 900	79 100 000	100 100 000	181 180 805	100 311 100	100 550 154	117.901.835	110.345.050	118.803.234	123 547 534	127,310,549	131,199,965	135.179.471	129 291 455	143.527.B10	147,890,439	102,144,152	157.012.075	161,780,007	100,100,458	171,749,172	175,857,617	182,323,346	187,350,848	183542548	100,405,804	225,44,999	211,005,340	210,072,000
(change in 20	na .	-	12,000,000		1-,189	,,,	,,	,,																								
Miner																																
City of Rochester Hills Mile	***	B 3651	B.3881	9.3581	9.3081	1.3611	1.3681	0.3441	0.3641	1361	1.3101	9.3491	8,3681	8.3681	1,340}	9,3681	9.3001	9.3681	1,3611	0.3491	9.3601	0,3491	p 5001	9.3441	2 3411	B 3865	1.3001	1.3611	D.3661	P3691	0.3641	B.3491
School Obertal		16,0000	12 2000	19 0000	18 0000	18,0000	18.0000	18.0000	18.0000	15,0000	12.2020	14.0000	19 2000	10 0000	16,0000	12 D200	18.0000	10 0000	18.0000	18.0000	18,0000	18,0000	18 2000	12 2020	19.0000	18 2000	18.2000	18.0000	14.0000	12 0000	18,0000	18,0000
State Education Tax (SI	EQ.	2000	6 2000	1.0000	8.0000	6,0000	\$ 0000	4.0000	1,0000	E.0000	0,0000	8.0004	6,0000	\$ 2000n	8,0000	8.0000	0.0000	6.0000	1.2000	8.0000	1.0000	6,9000	8 2050	6,0000	4.0000	4 1050	E 0000	4.0000	4.0201	1,000	6,0000	6.0000
Interrophete School Dieb	trict	5.2250	1 2250	E 2259	\$.2250	5.2250	\$ 2250	1,2250	1 2250	1,7250	\$ 2250	6 2250	\$ 2250	1 1250	5.2254	1.2250	6.2250	\$.2750	E-2254	5.7258	\$.7250	1.2258	1.2253	\$.2250	E 2250	5.2250	5 2250	8.2250	5,2250	1 2250	1,2250	5.2250
Delitand County Community Colle	to place	1,5000	1,6000	1,6000	1.000	1,8090	1 (2000)	1.5060	1 6090	1.5000	1.6000	1,5000	1,6090	1.6060	1 8090	1 6000	1.1010	1.8090	1 5000	1,6790	1 6000	1.000	1.6090	1.6000	1.5090	1 6069	1.8000	1.1000	1 8290	1.6000	1,6090	1,6000
Outland Cox	anty	0.0747	8.0747	B 0747	1.5747	1.0747	9 A747	0.0747	8.0747	1,5747	1.0747	9.8747	E.0747	8,0747	2.6747	6.0747	1.5747	0.0747	8.0747	1.0747	0.0747	8.8747	3.0747	■ 6747	0.0747	# 8747	8.0747	9.0747	2,2747	B.0747	9.5747	8,0747
																													49.2789	45,2760	4270	49.2798
TOTAL SELLA	Œ	49 2798	49 2788	49 2768	46 2768	42,2748	48.2768	48.2798	44.2701	49.2788	44.2794	4 राध	49.2798	42	4K 27(8	41.751	48.2758	48.2788	4270	49.2764	41,2741	412708	40 27 91	49.2784	41 274	46 2766	48 2796	41.2758	49.2/10	46.2760	42/0	44.2/48
Yearly Captured Tex																																
Cay of Rochester Hills Mile			146,142	303,524	731,948	\$37,747	M6.413	100,340	1,826,332	1,057,87%	1,000,045	1,123,173	1,157,402	1,182,679	1,228,072	1,294,375	1,394,800	1,344,581	1.385,452	1,427,550	1,470,916	1.519,572	1,541 573	1,909,954	1:657,757	1,704.023	1,750,700	1,913,128	1,869,054	1,924,629	1.962,902	2,042,673
School Operat	416		200,000	583,200	1,495,800	1,901,800	1,854,820	1,953,612	1,072,047	2,932,234	2,094,227	2,156,tm0	2,223,848	2,291,590	2,381,384	2,433.230	2,507,253	2,583,487	2,662,629	2,742,915	2,629,228	2.912,041	3,000 420	3,891,467	3,545,237	3,281,820	1,341,301	3,483,766	3,548,205	2,896,010	1.909,878	3,825,362
State Education Tax (5)	IET)		63,600	194,400	483,600	100,500	912,550	827,871	£57.348	877,411	649,074	710,360	741,783	763,883	797,121	911,877	105,711	361,166	697,343	b14,385	M2,879	678.640	1,800,143	1,230,490	1,041,744	1,010,040	1,127,100	1,161,755	1,196,435	1,232,670	1,260,012	1,301,434
Intermediate School Dist	drict	•	81.510	169,200	404.073	\$23,023	529 011	353,478	572,441	\$89,812	204,703	ENEMS	645,534	865,199	ers,451	704,313	737,800	749,912	772.724	704.207	\$29,391	348.301	870,858	207,314	E24 404	852,838	001,510	351,410	1,041,885			
Goldand County Community Coli	lage		25.100	E2,132	125 MA3	181 081	165.064	171,054	176,279	125,210	187,281	182,000	198,787	204,943	211,000	217,504	224.121	230,516	237 454	343,184	252,633 1,267,830	1306.325	244,205 1,245,875	279,343	294 725 1 A25 880	203,318 1 472 208	302,251 1,518,833	1,542,794	1 510 142	330,541	340.570 1.700.134	350,876 1,760,868
Dekland Cou	unity	•	125,165	261,628	E30 E34	BBS 277	132.916	958,436	884,849	811,849	639,468	264,503	907,506	1,827,864	1,050,205	1,081,534	1,134,740	1,168,942	1.184,171	1,230,456	1,287,830	1304,325	1,346,875	1,344,315	1 A25,600	1.472.204	1,610,002	1,342,784	1,910 (42	1,656,907	1,700,134	1,760,518
Total Yearly Captured Taxes		•	753,118	1,564,168	3,770,418	4,612,500	4,860,735	1,112,394	8,289,117	3,453,342	3,616,810	8,760,047	3,964,440	6,146,146	0,333,282	4,529,002	1,724,541	4,179,084	7,130,077	7,354,410	7,580,970	7,010,223	0,047,212	0,221,452	1,542,544	0,301,300 500,000	6,049,790	8,343,615	4.121.475	0.010,227	10,218,526	10.527,833
														75.000	75,000	75,000		71 000	75.000	75,000	71.000	75,004	15.000	73.000	75.000	75,806	75.000	75 400	29 000	79 000	75 000	75.000
Yearly City Administrative Custs			T5,000	75,000	75,000	71,900	75,000	79,000	73.000	79.000	73,000	75,000	75,000	70,000		,,,,,,,	10,000	79,000	12,500	10,000	,,,,,,		,,,,,,,			,			, .,			11,2-1
Yearly Tax Increment Available for Relative	ters connected		679,118	1,400,150	1 685,418	4.767,506	4,805,235	1,057.364	5,214,117	1,375,542	5,541,910	1,713.047	E,369.440	6,271,146	6.250,292	4.451.032	8.548.585	8,354,054	7,864,677	7,281,610	7,505,070	7.735,223	7,872,282	8,216,452	8,467,646	4,724,644	9,043,790	0.264,615	2,551 475	5,943,227	10,143.526	161421222
Commisting Cophecod Temp for Reliables		CONTRACT NO	in distant	2,107,214	1,342,744	14,839,212	41,511,40	39,511,544	2.7m,vit		34,734,510	ALAZTATT	44314,67	\$4,167,303	. et.bit,315	67,457,337	73,744,983		57,801,343	M40212	193,483,181	110,157,505	111,110,757	111,174,230	114244,117	141,571,171	112,544,574	101,223,546	171,311,314	121,220,401	191,372,817	281,324,854
	e																															
Brownfield Brawnson Schoole.	0.265 (4	nterest rate)																														
Separatry of Ferred (SOF) Salence		120,000,000	110 000,000	\$31,271,892	131,912,314	130,167,301	127,212,171	224,267,361	\$20,787,052	111.925,004	312,949,863	\$7,838,102	\$2,722,482	(\$2,979,351)	(19,244,110)	(\$16,100,313)	(\$23,461,060)	4	4	(959 A15,218)	(348.973,948)	(872,442,219)		(\$89,374,676)								
Informal Charge		20	E1.300,000	12,032,172	\$2,04K,000	11,942,218	\$1,710.524	\$1,277,418	11.251,219	\$1,180,131	1472.229	\$115.457	1177,012	(\$195,659)	(1400.978)	(81,044,715)	(31,534,098)	(92,044,005)	(\$2,545,80m)	(\$3,276,941)	(13,943,300)	(\$4.708,744)	(45.517,002)	(\$4,364,445)	[\$7,344,192]	(10,271,636)	(\$0,483,370)	14.10,222,000,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	,,	,	(\$16.517,764)
Paydener		20	(\$470,110)	(\$1,488,168)	(\$2,585,418)	(\$4,757,300)	(\$4,905,235)	(85,067,594)	(65,214,117)	(E23)2342)	(ES,341,810)	(\$1,713,047)	(25,200,402)	(16.271,140)	(\$4.254.292)	(94,451,032)	(\$4,640,585)	(94,954,964)	(17,044,177)	(\$7,281,818)	(27,205,070)	(17,730,223)	(37372,282)	(14.211.452)	(21,417,941)	(19,726,110)	,	(59,269,515)	,,,		(\$10,143,520)	
End of Period Salence		139,010,000	131,271,212	851,010,200	\$30,187,946	\$27,282,970	\$24,267,914	120,707,002	110,071,004	\$12,649,863	57,938,192	\$2,712,482	(\$2,574,354)	(\$1,344,160)	(\$16,183,213)	(EZ3,801,948)	(831,784,664)	(140,704,713)	(230,4(5,238)	(340.373,549)	(372.442,219)	(\$84,884,596)	(See .374,070)	(8112289397)	(3129,769,997)	(\$140,897,994)	(\$104,37 5,163)	(3194,448,784)	1000,700,000	14220 (46) 373)	(1424.1(1,441)	(\$20 (\$200 \$45)

Note; propipal amount includes \$30000 brownfold cost. Assumed interest rate of \$2%.